


In compliance with Rule 17.15 Disclosure of Dealings in Issuers’ Shares, Rulebook of the Exchange 2015
(Issuers Rule) 11Plc maintains a Security Trading Policy which guides Directors, Audit Committee
members, employees and all individuals categorized as insiders as to their dealing in the
Company’s securities. The Policy is periodically reviewed by the Board and updated. The Company has

made specific inquiries of all its directors and other insiders and is not aware of any infringement of

the policy during the period under review.

The Company’s issued and paid up share capital as at December 31, 2020 was N180,297,630.50 divided
into 360,595,261 ordinary shares of 50 kobo each. The following is the analysis of shareholdings in the

Register of members as at that date:

SECURITIES TRADING POLICY

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

NO OF % OF % OF
SHARE RANGE SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS NO OF HOLDINGS SHAREHOLDINGS

1 1,000 21,371 68.64 7,132,760 1.98

1,001 10,000 8,828 28.36 24,007,524 6.66

10,001 50,000 756 2.43 14,561,098 4.04

50,001 100,000 89 0.29 6,178,249 1.71

100,001 500,000 79 0.25 17,109,995 4.74

500,001 1,000,000 6 0.02 4,474,565 1.24

1,000,001 10,000,000 3 0.01 5,676,647 1.57

10,000,001 and above 1 0.00 281,454,423 78.05

TOTAL 31,133 100 360,595,261 100

FULLY PAID SHARE CAPITAL HISTORY
Bonus Year Ratio Units 52,450,220 units (Initial Share Capital)

1981 12 26,225,110 78,675,330 (cumulative)
1984 1.4 19,668,832 98,344,162 (cumulative)
1987 1:3 32,781,388 131,125,550 (cumulative)
1994 1:10 13,112,550 144,238,105 (cumulative)
1999 1:3 48,079,368 192,317 473 (cumulative)
2002 1:4 48,079,368 240,396,841 (cumulative)
2007 14 60,099,210 300,496,051 (cumulative)
2011 1:5 60,099,210 360,595,261 (cumulative)

In Compliance with Rule 2:0 of the Free Float Rules on Self-Assessment and Self-Regulation, 11PIc as at
December 31, 2020 is in compliance with the free float requirement for the main Board of the Nigerian

Stock Exchange.

FREE FLOAT RULE
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11Plc

Financial Highlights

=N='000

Group _ Company
ﬁ | 2019 | |Change %

Revenue - 191,676,329 (14)
Profit before taxation 13,107,877 (31)
Taxation (4,224;128} (35)
Profit for the Year 8,883,749 (30)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income { 8,883,749 (30)
Earnings per 50k share (kobo) : ' a,ﬁi (30)
Total assets , 91,199,284 5
Capital expenditure ‘ 1&,273,&7’9 (30)
Authorised share capital | 200,000 =
Number of 50k shares issued and
fully paid up (absolute figures in units) -

COMMENTS: CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) PANDEMIC

The Covid-19 crisis continues to impact all businesses, with the effect expected to be more pronounced in the
future. The priority for us is to protect the health, safety and welfare of all stakeholders under our duty of care
as well as support the Government and its agencies as they work to reduce the impact of the outbreak.

At this stage, it is not possible to determine the financial impact of Covid-19 on our Company given the lack o!
visibility on the end date of the pandemic or on how long it would continue to impact the Nigerian economy.
The Company has a strong Balance Sheet and the Board and Management are focusing on efforts to mitigate
the impact on our business.



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Companies and Allied Matters Act requires the directors to prepare the financial statements for
each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the company at the
end of the year and of its profit or loss. This responsibility includes

a) Ensuring that the company keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable
accuracy, the financial position of the company and comply with the requirements of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act.

b) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and

c) Preparing the company’s financial statements using the suitable accounting policies supported
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates that are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
the appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and with requirements of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the company and of its profit or loss. The directors further accept responsibility for
the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial
statements as well as adequate systems of internal financial control

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going
concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

nji Virwani Ramesh
Director
this 29 day of March, 2021 Dated this 29 day of March, 2021
FRC/2014/10DN/00000007151 FRC/2014/ANAN/00000009240



£ GrantThornton

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO
THE MEMBERS OF 11 PLC

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of 11 Plc (the “Company”), and its subsidiary (the
“Group”), which comprise of the consalidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consclidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Financial
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 and the
provision of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfiled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Chartered Accountants
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statements of the current year. We T +2348057849477
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have communicated the key augﬁ e EranTtOmioh.EONT g
matters to those charged with
governance (TCWG). The key audit matters are not a
comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond tc our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Grant Tharnton Nigeria is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



O Grant Thornton

Accounting for the acquisition of Lagos Continental
Hotel

During the year, 11 Pic (Group) acquired Lagos
Continental Hotel through its subsidiary (11 Hospitality
Limited) for a purchase consideration of N22.1billion. 11
Hospitality Limited carry-on business as hoteliers, hotel
proprietors and hotel managers.

Given the higher assessed risk of material misstatement
and significant management judgment regarding the
identification/ measurement of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, we considered the
accounting for this acquisition to be a key audit matter.

As part of our audit procedures for the accounting of the
acquisition:

e We reviewed the deeds of assignment and
Contract for sale to obtain an understanding of
the transactions and the key terms.

e We assessed the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual
terms and economic circumstances.

= We compared the key assumptions within each
assessment to market evidence and applicable
industry data.

We assessed that the identifiable assets acquired,
and liabilities assumed met the definitions of assets
and liabilities in the Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements at the
acquisition date.

» We engaged our internal specialist to re-perform an

independent assessment of the procedures
performed.
o We validated the appropriateness and

completeness of the related disclosures in Note
34 of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our procedures performed and our assessment of
the disclosures made, we are satisfied that accounting for the
acquisition is in accordance with the standard.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises of the Managing Director's
Foreword, Chairman’s Statement Report of the Directors,
Corporate Governance Report, Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, Report of the Statutory Audit Committee and
Other National Disclosures, which we obtained prior to the
date of this report, and the Annual Report, which is expected
to be made available to us after that date. Other information
does not include the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express an audit opinion or
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard. When we read
the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.



O Grant Thornton

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

management

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of

V)

the going concern of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transaction and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 requires that in
carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on the
following matters. We confirm that:

0

i)

i)

We have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by
the company; and

The Group's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
and Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
- ¢ are in agreement with the books of

; O’LC?‘L{WJC?E)A

Uchénha Okigbo, FCA
FRC/2016/ICAN/00000015653
For: GRANT THORNTON

(Chartered Accountants)
LAGOS, NIGERIA.

CTrTuTE OF CHARTERED
v GERA



Report of the Audit Committee

To the Members of 11pic
In compliance with Section 359 sub-section 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 LFN
2004, the committee reviewed the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended

December 31, 2020 and report as follows:

1. The accounting and reporting policies of the company are consistent with legal requirements
and agreed ethical practices.

2. The scope and planning of the external audit was adequate.
3. The company maintained effective systems of accounting and internal control during the year.

4. Having reviewed the External Auditor’s findings and recommendations, we are satisfied with

management responses thereon.

Mr. Esan Ogunleye
FRC/2013/CIBN/O0O0O0D03821
Chairman,

Audit Committee.

Dated this 29 day of March,2020

Members of Audit Committee:

Barr. :j Adetutu Slynnbola

_éy.mg?

Mr. Raphael Osayameh

'
Alhaji AEII‘IU Abduéadir

%‘f 5 R/V\
. Paul C. Obi



11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2020

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2020

Group Company
2020 2020 2019
Note(s] N. '000 N. '000 N. '000

Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 3 37,900,172 17,742,970 28,377,610
Investment property 4 18,222 889 18,222,889 20,796,632
Right-of-use-assets 7 1,846,256 1,846,256 1,527,470
Intangible assets 6 21,164 21,164 44,696
Investments in Subsidiary 8 - 22,100,000 -
Prepayments 10 37,234 37,234 86,558

58,027,715 59,970,513 50,832,966
Current assets
Inventories 11 9,056,750 8,974,765 16,713,440
Trade and other receivables 12 10,645,834 11,454,789 14,199,551
Prepayments 10 4,743 465 4,715,152 2,462,575
Cash and cash equivalents 15 10,582,280 10,333,627 6,660,251

35,028,329 35,478,333 40,035,817
Assets held for sale 36 - - 330,501
Total assets 93,056,044 95,448,846 91,199,284
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 16 180,298 180,298 180,298
Share premium 16 14,380 14,380 14,380
Retained earnings 17 39,456,210 42,742,892 39,486,935
Total equity 39,650,888 42,937,570 39,681,613
Non current liabilities
Deferred income 20 10,609,117 10,609,117 12,805,166
Deferred tax liability 9 4,829,400 4,829,400 3,483,517
Total non-current liabilities 15,438,517 15,438,517 16,288,683
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 24,919,231 24,025,351 18,872,750
Borrowings 18 5,000,000 5,000,000 3,617,000
Deferred income 20 7,167,901 7,167,901 9,418,164
Current tax payable 22 583,250 583,250 2,767,932
Bank overdraft 15 296,257 296,257 553,142
Total current liabilities 37,966,639 37,072,759 35,228,988
Total liabilities 53,405,155 52,511,276 51,517,671
Total Equity and Liabilities 93,056,044 95,448,846 91,199,284

The accounting policies and notes on pages 25 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statement.
The financial statements, accounting policies and the notes were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on March 29, 2021 by:

(AN

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Rl

S M
A A_REBARIIS (]
(ERe7 2014 /{ODN /00000007151)

A.B. NWACHUKWU

FRC/2014/1CAN/00000007154

ACCOUNTING MANAGER

RAMESH VIRW
FRC/2014/ ANAN/
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR




11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended December 31, 2020

Group Company
Note(s) 2020 2020 2019
N.'000 N.'000 N. ‘000

Revenue 25 165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329
Cost of sales 27 (1562,676,159)  (152,516,303) (175,035,841)
Gross profit 12,820,268 11,391,639 16,640,488
Other income 26 9,076,241 9,076,241 8,042,462
Selling and distribution expenses 28 (6,467,220) (6,467,220) (7,007,774)
Administrative expenses 28 (9,480,549) (4,765,238) (4,520,544)
Other operating expense 28 (35,552)
Operating profit 5,948,740 9,235,422 13,119,080
Finance income 30 229,378 229,378 298,900
Finance costs 29 (475,858) (475,858) (310,103)
Profit before taxation 5,702,260 8,988,942 13,107,877
Income tax expense 31 (2,758,074) (2,758,074) (4,224,128)
Profit for the year 2,944,186 6,230,868 8,883,749
Per share information

Basic earnings per share (kobo) 32 816 1,728 2,464

The accounting policies and notes on pages 25 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.



11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2020

Other
Share capital Share premium reserves Retained earnings Total equity
N '000 N '000 N '000 N '000 N '000

Group
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Balance as at January 1, 2020 180,298 14,380 - 39,486,935 39,681,613
Profit for the year - - - 2,944,186 2,944,186
Total 180,298 14,380 - 42,431,121 42,625,799
Dividends " . s (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 180,298 14,380 - 39,456,210 39,650,888
Company
For the year ended December 31, 2019
Balance as at January 1, 2019 180,298 14,380 - 33,578,097 33,772,775
Profit for the year - - - 8,883,749 8,883,749
Total 180,298 14,380 - 42,461,846 42,656,524
Dividends . : - (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
Balance as at December 31, 2019 180,298 14,380 - 39,486,935 39,681,613
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Balance as at January 1, 2020 180,298 14,380 - 39,486,935 39,681,613
Profit for the year - - - 6,230,868 6,230,868
Total 180,298 14,380 - 45,717,803 45,912,481
Dividends . < > (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 180,298 14,380 - 42,742,892 42,937,570
Note(s) 16 16 17 17

The accounting policies and notes on pages 25 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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11PIc
(Registration number RC 914)

Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2020

Group Company
Note(s) 2020 2020 2018
N. '000 N. "000 N. ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxaton 5,702,260 8,988,942 13,107,877
Adjustment for non cash items
Net finance cost/(income) 29830 246,480 246,480 11,203
Depreciation of PPE and investment property 384 4,882,613 3,393,846 3,357,127
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 7 216,364 216,364 194,570
Amortization of intangible assets 6 23,532 23,532 23,620
(Gain)/ Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Eqiupment 3 (270,302) (270,302) 35,552
Amortisation of deferred rental income 4 (7,660,720) (7,660,720) (7,630,271)
Exchange (gain)/loss (102,937) (102,937) (44,747)
Operating profit before working capital changes (2,664,971) (4,153,737) (4,052,946)
Working capital adjustments/changes
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories " 7,656,690 7,738,675 1,205,158
(Increase)/Decrease in due from related companies 12 7,236,876 6,169,106 (2,818,037)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables and bridging claims 12 (2,808,378) (2,808,378) (74,850)
(Increase)/Decrease in other debtors and prepayments 12 (2,776,261) (2,489,133) 1,161,014
(Increase)/Decrease in due to related companies 23 5,133,200 4,933,494 5,126,965
Increase/(Decrease) in trade creditors & bridging allowance 23 (1,442,657) (1,709,858) 5,171,589
Increase/(Decrease) in other creditors and accruals 23 2,355,943 1,928,967 362,096
Net changes in current assets and liabilities 15,355,413 13,762,874 10,133,936
Income taxes paid 22 (3,596,459) (3,596,459) (3,078,072)
Rental income received 20 3,214,408 3,214,408 8,204,462
Net cash generated from operating activities 18,010,652 18,216,027 24,315,256
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (12,382,759) (12,290,303) (18,273,079)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 821,626 275,140 2,153
Interest received 30 229,378 229,378 298,800
Net cash used in investing activities (11,331,755) (11,785,785) (17,972,026)
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowing 18 1,383,000 1,383,000 3,617,000
Dividend paid 33 (2,974,911) (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
Finance to purchase right-of-use-assets 7 (535,150) (535,150) (1,722,040)
Interest Paid 29 (475,858) (475,858) (310,103)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,602,920) (2,602,919) (1,390,054)
Net (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,075,977 3,827,323 4,953,176
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 6,107,109 6,107,109 1,109,186
Effect of exchange (gain)/loss movement on cash balances 102,937 102,937 44,747
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 15 10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,109

The accounting policies and notes on pages 25 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.




11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020
Accounting policies

Reporting Entity

11PIc (formerly Mobil Oil Nigeria plc) was incorporated as a Private Limited Liability Company in 1951. It became a public limited liability
company in 1978 and its share capital is listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange.

ExxonMobil pic conducted the transfer/sale of her 60% holding in Mobil Oil Nigeria plc. (MON) to NIPCO Investment Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Nipco Plcin 2017. As at December 31, 2020, Nipco Group shareholding in 11Plc is 78.82% while other investors hold
21.18%.

The Change in Control (CIC) resulted in the change of the Company name to 11Plc (Double One plc).

The Company was formed principally for the marketing of petroleum products. The Petroleum products the company sells include; Petrol,
Diesel, Aviation fuel, Liquefied petroleum gas, Kerosene and Lubricants. Petrol, Diesel, Liquefied petroleum gas and Kerosene are mainly
sold through the company’s service stations while Lubricants are sold through distributors. Aviation fuel is sold at Murtala Muhammed

Airport.

All the fuels which the Company sells are purchased either from the Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation or from other third party
suppliers. Lubricants are blended locally or purchased from ExxonMobil Corporation through a related party.

In 2020, 11Plc acquired the full and complete ownership of Lagos Continental hotel as her wholly owned subsidiary. The Company also
has some investment properties which are leased for office and residential purposes at market rate.

Significant accounting policies
1. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and in conformity with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) of Nigeria Act
2011 and the Companies and Allied Matters Act. The financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on March
29, 2021.

2. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary as at December 31, 2020.
Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 11 Plc has 100% control of her wholly owned subsidiary 11 Hospitality
formerly called Lagos Continental hotel.

3. Business Combination

Business combination are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-confrolling interest in the
acquiree. When the Company acquired its subsidiary 11 Hospitality it acquired all the assets “without recourse” to any outstanding
liability. The value of the asset was assessed as appropriate and of same value with the purchase consideration. For business
combination acquisition-related cost are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses. No contingent liability/asset
was transferred at acquisition.

4. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira which is the Groups’ functional currency. The financial statements have
been rounded to the nearest thousands, except where stated otherwise.

12



11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020
Accounting policies

5. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following items in the statement of
financial position:

* employee loans measured at amortized cost
¢ inventory measured at lower of cost and net realizable value
s trade receivables measured at amortized cost.

6. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and there are no uncertainties that may cast doubt on the
company's ability to continue as such.

7. Use of estimates and judgment
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make use of estimates and assumptions that affects the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgment are

inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the financial
statements. The statement of accounting policies forms an integral part of these financial statements.

8. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current and/or non-current classification. An
asset is current when it is:

« Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ Is due to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period
o » Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.
Non-current assets are due to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting period.
A liability is current when:

« It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

9. Interest in Joint Operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. A joint arrangement has the following
characteristics:
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e the parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, and
e the contractual arrangement gives two or more of those parties joint control of the arrangement.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities and expenses relating to its interest in its joint operations in accordance with applicable
IFRSs.

10. Investment property

1.

Investment property is recognized as an asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the investment
property will flow to the Group and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognized at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the investment property or recognized as a separate asset as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably.

Cost model

Investment property is carried at cost, less depreciation and any impairment losses.
Assets under Construction is not subject to depreciation until they are completed.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write down the cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives of the
property as follows:

Item Average useful life (years)
Land Infinite

Buildings 20-50

Plant and equipment 10-30

Fixtures and fittings 5-15

Motor vehicles 4-5

Residual values, method of depreciation and useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually and adjusted when appropriate.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Property, plant and equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to

the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
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12.

item can be measured reliably. Interest is capitalized as an increase in property, plant and equipment on major capital projects during
construction. All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.

Assets under Construction are included in property, plant and equipment but are not subject to depreciation until they are completed

Property and equipment are derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal
and gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.

Depreciation, impairment losses and gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are included in profit or loss.
Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
Residual values, method of depreciation and useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually and adjusted when appropriate.

The Group depreciates significant parts of plant and equipment which are replaced at intervals separately based on their specific useful
lives.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life (years
Land Infinite

Buildings 20-50

Plant and equipment 10-30

Fixtures and fittings 5-15

Motor vehicles 4-5

Intangible assets
The Group's intangible assets are classified into three groups:
a) Software License:

These are acquired computer software licenses and are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. The costs are amortized on a straight line basis over 15 years which is the estimated useful life of the software.
Upgrades are amortized over the remaining useful life of the asset and costs associated with maintaining computer software programs
are recognized in expense as incurred.

b) Franchise costs:

These are capitalized amounts paid to UAC Nigeria plc. (UAC), which gives the Company the right to use the "Mr. Biggs” Brand in its
retail outlets. Amortization is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the franchise costs over the period of the agreement
between 11Plc and UAC, which has a contractual life of 10 years.

c) Permits

These are capitalized amounts paid to a third-party for a right of way permit. The permit is for 20 years and it is amortized using the
straight line method.

Intangible assets amortization is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. These are reviewed annually and adjusted when appropriate.

Intangible assets are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal.
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13. Financial instruments
a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognized initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The
Group initially measures its financial instruments at fair value. See accounting policy 27 on fair value measurement

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement, financial instruments are measured at amortized cost. The amortized cost of a financial asset or

liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the

maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

c) Derecognition

In determining whether the financial asset is due for derecognition, the Group considers the following factors:

. an asset in its entirety or

. specifically identified cash flows from an asset (or a group of similar financial assets) or

. a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of the cash flows from an asset (or a group of similar financial assets). or

. a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of specifically identified cash flows from a financial asset (or a group of similar financial
assets)

Derecognition is appropriate after the group assess that all control has been relinquished and it has neither retained nor transferred
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

d) Classification
Financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets of the Group are measured at amortized costs. The Group's financial assets
include:

I. Trade receivables: fair value approximates the amortized cost as the difference is deemed immaterial
Il. Employee loans: amortized cost using the effective interest rate.

Il. Cash equivalents; fair value approximates the amortized cost as the difference is deemed immaterial

The Group’s financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if they meet both of the following criteria:

« 'Hold to collect business model test - The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial asset in
other to collect contractual cash flows; and

e  'SPPI' contractual cash flow characteristics test - The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding on a specified date. Interest in this context
is the consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time.

16



11Plc

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020
Accounting policies

Financial liabilities

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities of the Group are measured at amortized costs. The Group's financial liabilities
include:

I Trade & other payables: fair value approximates the amortized cost as the difference is deemed immaterial

1. Borrowings: measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs, to
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down; the fee is capitalized as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost by the Company unless either:

. The financial liability is held for trading and is therefore required to be measured at FVTPL, or
e«  The Company elects to measure the financial liability at FVTPL (using the fair value option).

e) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle it on a net basis, to realize the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

f)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, deposit received from customers and other short-term
highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities on the statement of financial

position.
g) Impairment

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables. The company applies the simplified approach
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

Measurement of ECL

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on economic factors that may affect the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The amount of expected credit loss is recognized in the profit or loss account and deducted from
the carrying amount in the statement of financial position

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the receivables has occurred.

Evidence that the future cash flow may be impaired includes the following observable data:
. Significant financial difficulty of the customer

¢« A breach of contract
. It is becoming probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

In making an assessment of whether a customer is credit worthy and in determining the loss rate, the Group considers the following factors.
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@ The credit ratings, and payment terms of trade customers.

. Financial risk assessments, TAR trend analysis,

. Legal framework, management quality, Business ethics and integrity,
. Risk behavior and vulnerability,

«  Competitive position and payment performance of the customers.

Employee loans

Employee loans are limited to 25% of employee's emoluments in line with human resource policy. There has been no history of default as
repayment are deducted from the employee's monthly salary. If the employee retires or is separated, the outstanding loan balance is
deducted from the final entitlement. Expected credit loss is nil.

14, Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate of the charge to the profit or loss account in respect of current income tax, education tax and
deferred tax.

Current income tax liabilities are recognized in line with the provisions of the Companies Income Tax Act and Tertiary Education Trust
Fund Act. Income tax is determined at 30% of taxable profit and education tax is determined at 2% of assessable profits. Capital gains
tax liability is charged on applicable capital asset disposals where the proceeds are not to be reinvested in a similar asset.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and liabilities
and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes in accordance with the provisions of IAS 12. Current tax rates are used to
determine deferred taxes.

Income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except when they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which
case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: When the deferred tax liability arises from the Initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets arise from deductible temporary difference, unused tax losses and unutilized tax credit. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current assets against current
liabilities. Deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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15.

16.

17.

Leases

An arrangement is recorded (or contains) as a lease based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The lease contract is for the service station lands.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease’.

Lessees are to be to accounted for most contracts under an on-balance sheet model, with the distinction between operating and finance
leases being removed.

As a lessee
Recognize right-of-use lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet:

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The lease term over which the asset
will be depreciated is based on the contract terms. This can range from § - 99 years.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and low value leases. The Company has elected to apply
the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for those leases.

Liabilities are measured based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease term. The Company pays the total lease
amount on inception of the lease, as such, recognition of liability is not applicable.

As a lessor

The policy remains the same.
a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

The Company owns investment properties which are leased out under operating lease agreements to a third party. The investment
properties presented in the statement of financial position are in line with the accounting policy disclosed in note 4.

The lease income from the operating leases is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including
depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognized as an expense.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring and transporting
the stock to its present location. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method for lubricant products and weighted
average method for fuels products. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. If the carrying value exceeds the net realizable value, an inventory writes down is recognized.

Spare parts which are expected to be fully utilized in production and other consumables are valued at historical cost.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution plan for all its active employees and defined benefit plan for its Annuitants.

a) Short term benefits
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The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation and
sick leave, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognized in the profit or loss in the period in which the service is
rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

b) Post-employment benefits

Defined Contribution

In compliance with the PENCOM Act of 2014, the Company adopted a defined contribution scheme in 2014 for new employees. This
is a pension scheme under which 11Plc pays fixed contributions into a Pension Fund as an amount or as a percentage of the pay of
participants under the scheme as disclosed in retirement benefits Notes 19. Defined contribution is at 18%.

Defined contribution payments are funded from the operating expense on a monthly basis and there is no outstanding obligation after
the funding.

When the employee renders services, pension costs are recognized as expenses in the Statement of profit or loss.
All active employees were migrated fully to the defined contribution scheme on February 1st, 2017.
See note 19 on defined benefit scheme for annuitant.

¢) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized an expense when the Group is committed demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal,
to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. The Group settles termination benefits within twelve months and are
accounted for as short-term benefits.

18. Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognized as best estimates on statement of financial position date. They are recognized when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events and where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A reliable estimate of the amount to settle the obligation must also be possible before a provision is made. The

measurement of provisions takes into consideration the time value of money and risk specific to the obligation. The increase in provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

The carrying amount of provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted for new facts, changes in law or regulation.

Where the above conditions are not met, a contingent asset/liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

19. Revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue in accordance with the core principles below:
a) Identify the contract(s) with a customer

A customer is a party that has contracted with the Company to buy petroleum products (Petrol, Aviation fuel, Diesel, Liquefied petroleum
gas, Kerosene and Lubricants) or rendering of service (by providing a room, sales of food and beverages to hotel guest) in exchange for a

consideration.

The subsidiary is a hospitality company which largely offer lodging, meals and guest services to clients. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognize when it is established that a transfer of goods and service has taken place at a consideration that the subsidiary
expects to be entitie in exchange for such manner of goods and services
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b) Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Sales are recognised when control is transferred to the customer. This could be at the point of delivery/service confirmation, or at the point
of load confirmation for pick-ups.

Rooms/accommodation service is deemed performed at the time of checking in by the custormer. Revenue is recognized over the time
period of stay as the customer utilizes the provision of the benefit from the accommodation. The performance obligation lapses after

ownership has been transferred.

c) Determine the transaction price

Transaction price is the agreed amount identified in the contract. It represents that amount of revenue to be recognised as the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the applicable volume discounts. No element
of financing is deemed present. Revenue from hospitality business is recognized based on the contract price net of any agreed discount

and commissions

d) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
The price is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

e) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Revenue is recognized at the point in time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from four major categories namely: fuels, liquefied petroleum gas, lubricants and hospitality service. The Group
has determined that the disaggregation of revenue based on the criteria of types of products meet the disclosure requirements of IFRS 15
as it depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. See further details

on page 59.
20. Interest Income

Interest income related to employee benefits are recognized in the Group's financial statements using the effective interest rate method
and interest rate on short-term deposits are recognized in the Group's financial statements at fair value.

21. OtherIncome

Other income refers to all other sources of income apart from the sale of petroleum products and hospitality service which the Group
receives. The Group generate revenue from other stream which includes amongst others, rental income, backcourt income, laundry
service, business center, gym, space rental and secretarial service.

Rental income refers to rent the Company gets from its investment property and service stations. This income is recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Backcourt income refers to income recognised from the use of the backcourt on some of the Company's service stations by UAC,
Devyani, Finger licking, Eat n go, Food concept, Sommes, Royalty bakery, Abraham seed, Mandalas and UPS.
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22.

23.

24,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

is determined as follows:

Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary investment of
those borrowings.

Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred. The capitalisation of borrowing costs
commences when:

= expenditures for the asset have occurred,
= borrowing costs have been incurred, and
. activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as expense in the period they are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the official rates of exchange on the transaction date. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the official rates prevailing at that day while non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not translated.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the applicable official rates of exchange on the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are included in the profit or loss of the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.
Share capital and reserves

a) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity.

b) Dividend payable

Proposed dividends for the year are recognised as a liability after the statement of financial position date, when declared and approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

c) Share premium
Premiums from the issue of shares are reported in share premium.

d) Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprise the undistributed profits from previous periods which have not been reclassified to any specified reserves.
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25.

26.

27.

Deferred income

This relates to advance rent received from investment property. The current portion is amortized to income within one year on a straight
line basis while the non-current portion is initially carried at initial cost and subsequently at face value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset other than deferred tax assets
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Fair value measurement

The fair value of the Group's employee loans and its investment properties are reported for disclosure in the financial statements. The
Directors oversee all policies, procedures, significant valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurement.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties and significant liabilities, such as
contingent consideration.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

The fair value of the Group investment properties and employee loans are categorized as Level 3.
In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the market approach valuation technique was used. There was no change in

valuation technique during the year. In estimating the fair value of the investment properties the highest and best use of the properties
is their current use.
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28.

29.

Amortised cost using the effective interest rate is used in valuing employee loans.
Key accounting assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date which may have a
significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described
below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are refiected in the assumptions when they occur.

Valuation of Investment properties

11Plc carries its investment properties at cost however the fair values of the investment properties are also disclosed in the investment
property note 4. The Company engaged two independent valuation specialists to assess the fair value as at April 2019

The investment property assets were valued by reference to market-based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific
market factors such as nature, location and condition of the property.

There is no significant risk or uncertainty as at December 31, 2020 that will lead to material adjustment of the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Key accounting Judgments

In the process of applying the Group'’s accounting policies, the Directors have made the following judgments, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Lease commitments — 11Plc as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Directors have determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of
the commercial property, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties.
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Financial risk management

Financial instruments in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise of cash and cash equivalents (Note 15), trade and other
receivables (Note 12), trade and other payables (Note 23).

The Directors are responsible for reviewing and agreeing policies to manage the risk the Group's operations are exposed to. The Group’s
operations are exposed to the following risks:

Capital risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, provide returns to shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes borrowings, overdraft and cash and cash equivalents disclosed in Note
15 and 18 and equity as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position Notes 16 and 17.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or utilise assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of its gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position.

The Group is not exposed to any external imposed capital requirement.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Group Company
Debt to Equity Ratio 2020 2020 2019
(N’000) (N’000) (N’000)
Total debt (i) (5,296,257) (5,296,257) (4,107,142)
Cash and bank balances 10,582,280 10,333,628 6,660,251
Net Assets 5,286,023 5,037,371 2,553,109
Total equity (ii) 39,649,400 42,937,570 39,681,613
Net debt /equity - - =
(i) Total debt is the overdraft facility gotten from the bank and borrowings as disclosed in note 15 and 18.
(i) Total equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group as described in note 16 and 17.
Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risks by maintaining adequate reserves and prudent working capital management. In addition, the Group has
access to sufficient debt funding sources and to committed borrowing facilities to meet current business requirements.

The Group does not have any risk concentrations as the Group can get extended facility from suitable sources.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of
financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Group
Less than 3 Between 3 months Greater than 1
2020 months and 1 year year
(N’000) (N’000) (N'000)
Trade and other payables 22,975,006 = =
Borrowings 5,000,000
Bank overdraft 296,257 - -
Company
Less than 3 Between 3 months Greater than 1
2020 months and 1 year year
(N’'000) (N’000) (N’000)
Trade and other payables 22,252,074 - -
Borrowings 5,000,000
Bank overdraft 296,257 - -
Less than 3 Between 3 months Greater than 1
2019 months and 1 year year
(N’000) (N’000) (N’000)
Trade and other payables 17,203,645 - -
Borrowings 3,617,000
Bank overdraft 553,142 - -

Trade and other payables excludes VAT payables, WHT, consumption tax and unclaimed dividends.

At the end of the year, the Group had the following overdraft facilities:

Facility Amount Used Lines Interest
Bank Name Facility Type (N'000) (N'000) Rates (%)
Zenith Bank Uncommitted 12,000,000 296,257 12%

The Carrying amount of the used lines of overdraft equals its fair value.

Liquidity risk on cash is limited because the counterparties are banks with good credit-ratings. At the end of the financial year, the Group
had the following cash balances:
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N'000
Group Company

Rating 2020 2020 2019
A-2 447,439 447,439
A 9 9 9
B 8,838,563 8,589,910 6,107,100
N/A 1,000,012 1,000,012

10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,109

The bank ratings were obtained from Standard & Poor’s and Fitch rating agencies.

Interest risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds at rates subject to movements in the money market. The Group's interest
risk arises from overdraft and borrowings from banks.

The Group does not manage its exposure to interest rate risk and does not apply ECL on it because the maximum exposure envisaged is
deemed negligible as illustrated by the interest rate sensitivity below.

Interest expense relates to expense on overdraft and interest payable to dealers for deposits with the Company.

The analysis below shows the impact of a +1% change in the interest rates on the Statement of Profit or Loss as at end of December 2020.

Group
Annualized int. Naira Naira
2020 Interest Expense As at Dec 2020. (Sensitivity + 1%) | (Sensitivity - 1%)
(N’000) %
Net financing 475,858 11.5 11.5 (11.5)
Company
Annualized int. Naira Naira
2020 Interest Expense As at Dec 2020. (Sensitivity + 1%) | (Sensitivity - 1%)
(N’000) %
Net financing 475,858 11.5 11.5 (11.5)
Annualized int. Naira Naira

2019 Interest Expense As at Dec 2019. (Sensitivity + 1%) | (Sensitivity - 1%
(N’'000) %
Net financing 310,103 15.3 15.3 (15.3)
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Credit Risk

The Group’s credit policy ensures that credit sales are only made to credit worthy customers. These policies include detailed credit
assessment of individual customers and regular monitoring of credit balances. Other policies include securing the credits with bank
guarantees from Group selected ‘A’ rated banks and introducing deposit schemes for the customers.

Mitigating measures are defined and implemented for high-risk customers. These include shortened payment terms, vigorous collection
efforts and limiting the amount of credit exposure to any individual customer.

There is no material concentration of credit risk geographically or with individual customers and there has been no significant level of
counterparty default in recent years.

Group Company
Age analysis of 2020 2020 2019
receivables(Net amount) (N'000) (N°000) (N’000)
Current 8,321,188 9,130,143 4,670,394
Overdue 1 - 30 days 1,160,385 1,160,385 1,618,400
Overdue 31 - 60 days 324,305 324,305 4,386,208
Overdue 61 - 90 days 534,079 534,079 -
Overdue 91 - 180 days 28,105 28,105 37,508
Overdue 181 days 277,772 277,772 3,070,128
Total 10,645,834 11,454,789 13,682,638

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

(N’000) (N’000) (N’000)
Trade receivables 9,246,623 9,246,623 6,475,063
Allowance for expected credit losses (22,513) (22,513) (59,331)
9,224,110 9,224,110 6,415,732

Information about the Group's impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are provided on page 17 and 18.
Bank Balance

Counterparties are banks with good credit-ratings. The maximum exposure to credit risks in the Group bank balance as at the end of 2020
financial year is limited to N10B.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group transacts a significant portion of its purchases and some of its sales in foreign currency, and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
on these transactions. The Group has no long term assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currency. It offsets its foreign currency assets
and liabilities and settles the net exposure at prevailing exchange rates. The liabilities are payments due to foreign suppliers and assets are
foreign currency prepayments and deposits to products. The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange exposure and instead seeks to
recover currency effects through product pricing where appropriate.

The table below shows the before tax impact to Statement of Profit or Loss of a + 10% movement in the exchange rate
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Bank and Open Iltems

Foreign Exchange Naira at Dec Naira* (Sensitivity Naira™ (Sensitivity
2020 Currency Rate 2020 -10%) +10%)
(N’000) (N'000) (N'000) (N'000)
GBP - - - & -
EURO - - . - 2
usbD 4,289.32 400.33 1,717,143 171,714 (171,714)
Foreign Exchange Naira at Naira* (Sensitivity Naira™ (Sensitivity
2019 Currency Rate Dec 2019 -10%) +10%)
(N’000) (N'000) (N'000) (N'000)
GBP - - = - -
EURO - - = - -
UsD 1,110.28 364.700 404,919.12 40,492 (40,492)
Trade receivables / (payables
Foreign Exchange Naira at Naira* (Sensitivity Naira™ (Sensitivity
2020 Currency Rate Dec 2020 -10%) +10%)
(N'000) (N'000) (N'000) (N"000)
GBP - - - - =
EURO - - - - -
usD 4,161.80 400.33 1,666,093.39 166,609 (166,609)
Foreign Exchange Naira Naira* (Sensitivity Naira** (Sensitivity
2019 Currency Rate at Dec 2019 -10%) +10%)
(N’000) (N'000) (N"000) (N'000)
GBP - - - - -
EURO - & - - _
UsD 4,613.79 364.700 1,682,649.21 168,265 (168,265)

The group balance in 2020 is the same as the Company’s balance.

*Naira weakens by 10%

**Naira strengthens by 10%
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Market Risk

The Group is primarily exposed to market price risk on its sales of non-regulated fuel products and lubricants. The Group manages this
exposure by forecasting demands and monitoring events in the global market.

For regulated fuel products and Petrol the Company's exposure is limited to changes in government policy relating to regulated price.

The Group does not use commodity price swaps, options or futures to hedge against price risk. Changes in market price for non-regulated
products are reflected in the Group’s product pricing.
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Figures in Naira 2020 2019

1. New Standards and Interpretations
1.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 3% and IFRS 7

Temporary exceptions have been created by the IASB concerning the application of specific hedge accounting requirements
as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform. These exceptions apply only to those hedging relationships which are
directly affected by the reform, being those where the reform gives rise to uncertainties about:

(a) the interest rate benchmark (contractually or non-contractually specified) designated as a hedged risk; and/or

(b) the timing or the amount of interest rate benchmark -based cash flows of the hedged item or of the hedging instrument.

The exceptions are as follows:

(a) When determining whether a forecast transaction is highly probable, it shall be assumed that the interest rate benchmark
on which the hedged cash flows are based is not altered as a result of the reform.

{b) When assessing the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, entities shall, in their
prospective assessments, assume that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged item, hedged risk and/or hedging
instrument are based is not altered as a result of the reform.

(c) Entities applying IAS 39 for hedge accounting are not required to undertake the IAS 38 retrospective assessment for
hedging relationships directly affected by the reform.

(d) For hedges of a non-contractually specified benchmark component of interest rate risk, an entity shall apply the separately
identifiable requirement only at inception of such hedging relationships.

Entities shall cease applying the exceptions when the uncertainty arising from the reform is no longer present or when the
hedging relationship is discontinued.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
Definition of a business - Amendments to IFRS 3

The amendment:
. confirmed that a business must include inputs and a processes, and clarified that the process must be substantive

and that the inputs and process must together significantly contribute to creating outputs.

° narrowed the definitions of a business by focusing the definition of outputs on goods and services provided to
customers and other income from ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or other economic benefits
directly to investors or lowering costs; and

. added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a company has acquired a group of assets, rather than a
business, if the value of the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar

assets.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.

The adoption of this amendment has not had a material impact on the results of the company, but has resulted in more
disclosure than would have previously been provided in the financial statements.

Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure initiative
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1. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

The amendment clarify and align the definition of ‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the
application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Disclosure initiative

The amendment clarify and align the definition of ‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the
application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

1.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 or later periods:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

If a parent loses control of a subsidiary which does not contain a business, as a result of a transaction with an associate or
joint venture, then the gain or loss on the loss of control is recognised in the parents' profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interest in the associate or joint venture. The remaining gain or loss is eliminated against the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate or joint venture. The same treatment is followed for the measurement to fair value
of any remaining investment which is itself an associate or joint venture. If the remaining investment is accounted for in terms
of IFRS 9, then the measurement to fair value of that interest is recognised in full in the parents' profit or loss.

The effective date of the amendment is to be determined by the IASB.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's financial statements.
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1

The amendment changes the requirements to classify a liability as current or non-current. If an entity has the right at the end
of the reporting period, to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period, then the liability is

classified as non-current.

If this right is subject to conditions imposed on the entity, then the right only exists, if, at the end of the reporting period, the
entity has complied with those conditions.

in addition, the classification is not affected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. Therefore,
if the right exists, the liability is classified as non-current even if management intends or expects to settle the liability within
twelve months of the reporting period. Additional disclosures would be required in such circumstances.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2023 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company's financial statements.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
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1. New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

The IFRS establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
issued.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2023.
The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2023 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the company's financial statements.
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Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Reclassification between classes of assets

The company has restated the advances & employee receivables in trade and other receivables and prepayments of prior period to

recognise the appropriate treament of IAS 19

As previously

Adi
conortar djustment Restated
Current assets N. "000 N. 000 N. '000
Trade and other receivables 13,875,781 323,770 14,199,551
Prepayments 2,431,809 30,766 2,462,575
Non-current assets
Prepayments 441,094 (354,536) 86,558
Prior period restatement
Increase/ December 31,2020

December 31,2020 (Decrease) (restated)
Total Assets N. 000 N. '000 N. ‘000
Prepayments 2,431,809 30,766 2,462,575
Trade & other receivables 13,875,781 323,770 14,199,551
Current assets 16,307,591 354,536 16,662,126
Prepayments 441,094 (354,536) 86,558
Non-current assets 441,094 (354,536) 86,558

34



S€

020z dnoug - Juawdinba pue jue|d ‘Auadoud jo uonelouoday

0L9°228'82 (z68'91L1°L) L0S'v6¥'sE 0L6°ZPLLL (ev6‘9r0's) £16'682°62 1elol
Z€9'G58'91 . 2£9'668'01 122'061 - 122’061 UQNINIISUOD Japun }assy
z5e'vel (gzL'gee) 080°€9¥ 19Z'€61 (L62'58¢€) ¥90'6.5 S9I2IYaA 00N
GeL'0z (¥66'LLE) 6Z1'2EE 615'62 (Lo¥ L€} 026'99¢ SaIN)Xy pue ainyuIn
1G9'9EL'G (L16'616'E) ¥£9'950'6 ZLY'ES8°0L (1L62'Z8¢'p) £92'GEE'GL Auauiyoew pue Jueld
98Z'L6S'Y (861'9¥5°2) 98v'LEL' L 96£'18S'Y (PSP L¥8'2) 26L'22Y'L sBuiping
G691 = 9¥5'6¥9'L £51'668'L - £61'G68'1 pue

(000.'N) (000.'N)

{000, N) uoperoaidap (000.'N) (000.,N) uonewaidap (000./N)

anjea bulllien pajenwinooy 1500 anjeA Bulliien pajenwnooy 1809

610¢ 0zoc Auedwon
TLL'006°LE (oLL'se5%) z88'SEY LY lejoL
L2eo6l = L22'061 UOIJOrJSU0D Japun Jassy
225912 (6¥5'€6E) 120019 S9PIYSA JOJON
029'892'2 (921'268) 96L°G9L'E S3INIXY PUB NN
PL¥'0L9'9l (E¥0'L51'S) JAH kA WA Aisuiyoew pue juejd
Zvz'659'9lL (2v6'280'€) ¥8L'LpL'6L sBuipjing
£51'G68'L - £61'668'L pue

{000, N)

(000.'N) uofjeloaidap (000,'N)

anjea Bulluen pale|nwinooy 1809

020¢ dnoigy

juswdinba pue jueld ‘Apadoid ¢

000. N

sjuawiaje}s [elouell] pajepIjosuo) sy} 0} S8)0N

020Z 'LE Joquada papus Jeah au) J0} SJUSWAIE]S [BIDUBLIL PA]EPIIOSUD))
(F16 DY Jequinu uoneJsibay)

dnoig) 9|dLL



9e

‘g6 9 £ abed uo pajuasaid s| Juawdinb3 g jueld ‘Auadold Jo sisAjeue ajewa)e uy

“pasijepden uaaq aney sjs02 Buimoliog ou pue Juawdinb3 g Jueld ‘Auadold Jo uoisinboe By} 10} SJUSWIIWILIOD [BNIDRIIUCD OU 8le 318l

'gg @jou Ul pasoposip si jes 1o} pjay Jassy

0L6'2¥L'LL (s01'0z8) (o00‘001°22) - (8£8'v) £0£'062'2Z1 0L9'228'82
122'061 - (000'001'22) (09.'229'S) : 6¥€'LG0'LL 2£9'658'01 UONONIISU0D J3pun Jassy
L92'E61 (690°L¥) ® = = $86'GLL Z5e'¥ZL S9OIYBN JOJON
615'62 (Lot'52) - L6L'PE = - SEL'02 S3INJXY PUB SNy
ZL'e58'01 (eLe'25%) = 9L¥'EES'S (ge8'y) 055'0¥9 L59'9EL'S Asuiyoew pue jueld
B8EL'LBS'Y (9gz'562) * £6¥'¥S m €18'0€C 882'16S'V sBuiping
£51'G68'L = : - - 109'6¥2 9vs'6¥9'L pue
(000/'N) (000,N) (000,'N)
anjea jooq {000,N) Aeipisqng (000,'N) {000.,N) (000/'N) an(ea %00q
1oN Buiso|ny  uoneaide]  uljuawWlSsAU]  Slajsuel | sjesodsiq suonippy 1N Buiuadp
0zoz Auedwo - Juawdinba pue jueld ‘Auadoid Jo uoijeijidsuosay
ZLL'006°LE (zL8'80£°2) (L59°2¥0°LL) (8e8'v) oLr'sze’L £15°685°1Z 019°22¢'82
122'061 E (11¥'599'91) : - - 2£9'658°'01 UORONIISUBD J3pUn 1SSy
ze5'9Le (128'v5) = = ¥EL'8Z1 158'8L Z5E'pTL S92IYaA Jojopy
029'892'2 (z81'g85) LBL'PE = r9'LL €2 18L'C S€1L'02 SaINIX| PUB BINHILLNS
¥LY'0L9'91 (gzL'2z1't) 9/¥'€ES'S (9e8'¥) ¥12'€0L 0£0'62¢'9 159'9El'S Kisuiyoew pue jue|d
Z¥Z'659'91 (#rL'L¥S) £6¥'¥S - £18'0€2 Z6E'¥2E'ZL 88Z'L6S'¥ sBuiping
£51'G68'L - - - L09'6Y2 = 9vs'6v¥9'L pue
(000,N)
AjjeydsoH (000,N)
(000,'N) (000.N) (000.,'N) (000,N) (000, N) Ll @doueleq 9|d || aoueleq
el uojjeinaidag slajsuel) s|esodsiq suonIppy Buiuadp Buuadp

(panuniuog) Juawdinba pue jueid ‘Auadold ¢

000, N

Sjuawaje)g [eloueUl{ pPajeplIjosuod ayj 0} S8J0N

0202 'LE Jequweoaq pepue Jeak ay) 10} SJUSWSIE]S |EIDUBUIH Pa}EpIloSu0s)
(L6 O Jequinu uonensibay)

dnouio o|dL L



L€

01L9'228'82 (6z6°08L) - (902'28) 6.0°€L2'8) 991'€Z6'01
7£9'668'9L # (z22'864) - 9v8'G5€'9lL 855'862'1
FAsiol 74 (#95'L¥) sy’ - L0g8'9r GR9'EZL
geL'0z (zrz'1y) - - 882 65509
1G9'9EL'G (Fre' LIy} 00L'vLL (926'2) 810°L08 608'¥L2'F
88Z'165'¥ (608'082) ve'ee (082'62) 6L LEY re'ort'y
9v5'6¥9'L = - & ££8°0€6 e1L'8LL
(000, N) (000,N)
anjeA xooq {000, N) (000, N) (000, N) (000,'N) anjea 3ooq
19N Buiso|y  uonewaldaq siajsuel) s|esodsiq suonippy 18N Buuadp

UQljonaIsuod Japun jessy
S3[2IYaA J0JON

SaINIXY pue ainjiwn4
Alsuiyoew pue jueld
sBuiping

pue

610z Auedwo? -juswdinba pue jueld ‘Auadoud jo uoeljidouosay

(panupuos) juswdinba pue juejd ‘Apadoid ‘¢

000, N

sjuawiaje}s [eldueuld pajepijosuos ay} o} SajoN

0202 ‘L€ Jaquiedaq pspus Jeah ay} Joj SJUSWSIE]S [elOUBUIH PSIEPIIOSUOD
(¥L6 DY Jaquinu uonelsibay)

dnous) o|dL1L



11Plc Group

(Registration number RC 914)
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Investment property

Group 2020

Cost Accumulated Carrying value
(N.'000) depreciation (N.'000)

(N.'000)
Investment property 33,389,782 (15,166,893) 18,222,889
Company 2020 2019
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
(N.'000) depreciation (N.'000) (N.'000) depreciation (N.'000)
(N.'000) (N.'000)
Investment property 33,389,782 (15,166,893) 18,222,889 33,389,783 (12,593,151) 20,796,632
Reconciliation of investment property - Group 2020
Opening Depreciation Total
balance (N.'000) (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Investment property 20,796,632 (2,573,743) 18,222,889
Reconciliation of investment property - Company 2020
Opening Depreciation Total
balance (N.'000) (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Investment property 20,796,632 (2,573,743) 18,222,889
Reconciliation of investment property Company - 2019
Opening Depreciation Total
balance (N.'000) (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Investment property 23,372,830 (2,576,198) 20,796,632

A detailed presentation of investment property is presented on page 60.
Details of valuation
The company has five investment properties comprising of one office complex, and four residential properties.

The extensive refurbishment of Mobil house was completed in 2017. The costs involved in the refurbishment have been capitalised and depreciation has
started running on the assets created.

The valuations of the investment properties were performed by 2 independent valuers, Sunbo Onitiri & Co (FRC/2014/00000002931) and  Ismail and
Partners Chartered Surveyors & Real Estate Consultants. (Gbenga Ismail: FRC/2012/NIESV/00000000245).The fair value of the investment properties
as at April 2019 was 6.8 Billion.

Fair value information is disclosed in note 37.

There are no restrictions on the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for the year before tax

Rental income relating to investment property 7,660,720 7,660,720 7,630,271
Direct operating expenses from rental generating property (2,587,251) (2,587,251) (2,586,078)
5,073,469 5,073,469 5,044,193

5. Interestin Joint Operations

Included in property plant & equipment is N234million (2019: N92million) (Land & Building: N23million (2019: N25millien), Furniture & fixtures:NO.4million
(2019: NO.9million), Plant and machinery: N97million (2019: N55million), Vehicles: N122million (2019: N11million) which relates to the company's interest
in joint operations.
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5. Interestin Joint Operations (continued)
The Company recognised total costs of N157million (2019: N112million) in expenses that relate to costs incurred in its joint operations.

The Company has a fifty percent (50%) interest in a joint arrangement with Total Nigeria plc. for storage and handling of jet fuel to aircraft at the Murtala
Muhammed Airport Domestic Terminal.

In addition, the Company has a twenty percent (20%) interest in the Joint Users Hydrant Installation used to refuel aircraft at Murtala Munammed Airport
international terminal. The Company combines its share of the joint assets, income and expenditure, assets and liabilities and cash flow on a line-by-fine
basis with similar items in the Company’s financial statements. The Company classifies its share of the joint operation’s assets, according to the nature of
the assets; while operating costs of the joint facility are shared based on throughput.

11PIc has no obligation to decommission these assets and has not recognized any decommissioning costs.

6. Intangible assets

Group 2020

Cost Accumulated Carrying value
(N.'000) amortisation (N.'000)

(N.'000)
Computer software, other 229,582 (218,386) 11,196
Other intangible assets 15,045 (5,077) 9,968
Total 244,627 (223,463) 21,164
Company 2020 2019
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
(N.'000) amortisation (N."000) (N.'000) amortisation (N.'000)
(N.'000) (N.'000)
Franchise cost - - - 77,006 (77,0086) -
Software cost 229,582 (218,386) 11,196 229,582 (195,606) 33,976
Permits 15,045 (5,077) 9,968 15,045 (4,325) 10,720
Total 244,627 (223,463) 21,164 321,633 (276,937) 44,696
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group 2020
Opening Amortisation Total
balance (N.'000) (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Computer software, other 33,976 (22,780) 11,196
Other intangible assets 10,720 (752) 9,968
44,696 (23,532) 21,164
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Company 2020
Opening Amortisation Total
balance (N.'000) (N."000Q)
(N.'000)
Software cost 33,976 (22,780) 11,196
Permits 10,720 (752) 9,968
44,696 (23,532) 21,164
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Company 2019
Opening Amortisation Total
balance (N.'000) (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Franchise cost 88 (88) -
Software cost 56,756 (22,780) 33,976
Permits 11,472 (752) 10,720
68,316 (23,620) 44,696

An alternate analysis of Intangible Assets is presented on page 63.
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7. Right-of-use Asset

Cost

Opening balance 1,722,040 1,722,040 1,888,830

Additions 535,150 535,150 84,533

Classified as held for sale - - (251,323)
2,257,190 2,257,190 1,722,040

Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance (194,570) (194,570) -

Depreciation (216,364) (216,364) (194,570)

(410,934) {410,934) (194,570)

Carrying value

Opening balance 1,527,470 1,627,470 1,888,830

Additions 535,150 535,150 84,533

Classified as held for sale - - (251,323)

Amortisation (216,364) (216,364) (194,570)
1,846,256 1,846,256 1,527,470

8. Interests in subsidiaries

The following table lists the entities which are controlled by the Group directly through subsidiary.

Company

Name of company Held by % voting % voting Carrying Carrying Carrying

power power amount 2020 amount 2018 amount 2018
2020 2019
Lagos Continental hotel 11PIc 100.00 % - % 22,100,000 - -
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
9. Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Net deferred tax (4,829,400) (4,829,400) (3,483,517)
Deferred tax
Advance rent 3,004,375 3,004,375 3,706,739
Accelerated depreciation (7,287,922) (7,287,922) (6,475,316)
Capital gains tax rollover (345,726) (345,726) (345,726)
Bad debt, forex and notional interest on employee loans (200,127) (200,127) (369,214)
(4,829,400) (4,829,400) (3,483,517)
Deferred tax movement 2020: Group Opening Charged to Total
balance profit or loss
Deferred tax asset
Advance rent 3,706,739 (702,365) 3,004,374
Bad debt (11,587) (41) (11,628)
Impairment on trade receivables (6,844) (4,938) (11,782)
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated capital allowance (6,475,316) (812,606) (7,287,922)
Capital gains tax rollover (345,726) - (345,726)
Unrealised forex (353,241) 178,554 (174,687)
Notional interest on employee loans 2,458 (4,487) (2,029)
(3,483,517) (1,345,883) (4,829,400)
Deferred tax movement 2020 - Company Opening Charged to Total
balance profit or loss
Deferred tax asset
Advance rent 3,706,739 (702,365) 3,004,374
Bad debt (11,587) (41) (11,628)
Impairment on trade receivables (6,844) (4,938) (11,782)
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated capital allowance (6,475,316) (812,606) (7,287,922)
Capital gains tax rollover (345,726) - (345,726)
Unrealised forex (353,241) 178,554 (174,687)
Notional interest on employee loans 2,458 (4,487) (2,029)
(3,483,517) (1,345,883) (4,829,400)
Deferred tax movement 2019 - Company Opening Charged to Total
balance profit or loss
Advance rent 4,062,840 (356,100) 3,706,740
Bad debt (10,545) (1,042) (11,587)
Impairment on trade receivables 12,142 (18,985) (6,843)
Accelerated capital allowance (6,503,218) 27,900 (6,475,318)
Capital gains tax rollover (345,726) - (345,726)
Unrealised forex (13,839) (339,402) (353,241)
Notional interest on employee loans 1,818 640 2,458
(2,796,528) (686,989) (3,483,517)
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)
At beginning of year (3,483,517) (3,483,517) (2,796,528)
Originating temporary difference movement on PPE & Investment property assets (812,605) (812,605) 27,901
Bad debt, impairment, gain/(loss) on foreign exchange and notional interest on employee 169,086 169,086 (358,790)
loans
Advance rent (702,364) (702,364) (356,100)
(4,829,400) (4,829,400) (3,483,517)
Deferred tax assets due after 12 months
3,004,375 3,004,375 3,706,740

Advance rent
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
9. Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities due within 12 months
Bad debt (11,629) (11,629) (11,587)
Unrealised forex (174,687) (174,687) (353,241)
Notional interest on employee loans (2,029) (2,029) 2,458
Impairment on trade receivables (11,782) (11,782) (6,843)
(200,127) (200,127) (369,213)
Deferred tax liabilities due after 12 months
Depreciation (7,287,921) (7,287,921) (6,475,317)
Capital gains tax roliover (354,726) (354,726) (345,726)
(7,642,647) (7,642,647) (6,821,043)
10. Prepayments
Prepayments are made up of the following balances:
Insurance 57,245 42,569 30,766
Employee loans 37,234 37,234 86,558
Trade 4,686,220 4,672,583 2,431,809
4,780,699 4,752,386 2,649,133
Total prepayments
Current portion 4,743 465 4,715,152 2,462,575
Non-current portion 37,234 37,234 86,558
4,780,699 4,752,386 2,549,133
. Prepayments are expensed on a straight line basis.
. Trade prepayment in prior year includes 2,093million (2020: Nil) to a related party. See note 34.
. Employee loans refers to the prepaid portion of housing and car loans given to employees.
11. Inventories
Raw materials 5,726,558 5,715,363 13,664,898
Finished goods 3,186,933 3,140,571 2,944,149
Consumable equipment and spares 143,259 118,831 104,393
9,056,750 8,974,765 16,713,440

Obsolete inventory are not provided for but are rather written off to profit or loss immediately they are identified.

During the year, obsolete inventory worth N261million (2019: N6émillion) was written off and recognised in cost of goods sold.
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Group Company
2020 2020 2018
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000

12. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 9,224,110 9,224,110 6,415,732
Advances and employee receivables 450,906 450,906 343,057
Due from associated companies - 1,067,770 7,236,876
Witholding tax receivable - - 193,143
Other receivables 970,818 712,003 10,743

10,645,834 11,454,789 14,199,551
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
NGN 8,631,914 9,440,869 12,505,579
usD 2,013,920 2,013,920 1,693,972

10,645,834 11,454,789 14,199,551
The age analysis below excludes WHT and VAT
Neither impaired nor past due 8,321,188 9,130,143 4,994 164
Impaired - - -
Not impaired and past due in the following periods: -
1 to 30 days 1,160,385 1,160,385 1,518,400
31 to 60 days 324 305 324,305 4,386,208
61 to 90 days 534,079 534,079 -
91 to 180days 28,105 28,105 37,508
above 181 2797772 277,772 3,070,128

10,645,834 11,454,789 14,006,408

In line with established practice, the bridging claims receivable is net off against bridging allowances payable to Petroleum Equalization Fund (PEF).

13. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Loans and Receivables - Group 2020

Trade and other receivables (Excl. VAT and WHT)
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables - Company 2020

Trade and other receivables(Excl. VAT and WHT)
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and Total
receivables (N.'000)
(N.'000)
10,645,834 10,645,834
10,582,280 10,582,280
21,228,114 21,228,114
Loans and Total
receivables (N.'000)
(N.'000)
11,454,789 11,454,789
10,333,627 10,333,627
21,788,416 21,788,416
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
13. Financial assets by category (continued)
Loans and receivables - Company 2019
Loans and Total
receivables (N.'000)
(N.'000)
Trade and other receivables (Excl. VAT and WHT) 13,682,638 13,682,638
Cash and cash equivalents 6,107,109 6,107,109
19,789,747 19,789,747
Impairment Group 2020 Company Company
(N.'000) 2020 (N."000) 2019 (N.'000)
Trade receivables 9,246,623 9,246,623 6,475,063
Allowance for expected credit losses (22,513) (22,513) (59,331)
9,224,110 9,224,110 6,415,732
14. Loans to directors, managers and employees
Carrying value of loans to employees
At beginning of the year 210,509 210,509 255,349
Advances 28,800 28,800 -
Repayments (49,014) (49,014) (44,840)
190,295 190,295 210,509

These advances comprises three types of loans made available to employees of the company. They are;

. Compassionate loan
. Carloan
. Home ownership scheme

The Compassionate loan and Home ownership scheme loan were given to employees at 0% interest rate while the Car loan was given to employees at 5%
of the prevailing interest rate. 6 employees took car loan in 2020. In 2020, the rate equated to 0.65% (5% of 12.1%).

The Company measures employee loans at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Employees loans at amortized cost

Loans to directors, managers and employees 87,341 87,341 119,950

Fair value information is disclosed on note 37.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Total balance 10,582,280 10,333,627 6,660,251

Bank overdraft (296,257) (296,257) (553,142)
10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,109

Current assets 10,582,280 10,333,627 6,660,251

Current liabilities (296,257) (296,257) (553,142)
10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,109

Details on bank overdraft is disclosed in note 18.

Cash and bank

Short term deposits - - 4,551,274

Bank account 10,582,280 10,333,627 2,108,977

Bank overdraft (296,257) (296,257) (553,142)
10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,109
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N.'000 N.'000 N.'000

15. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Short-term deposits were placed based on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to

external credit ratings.

Credit rating
A
A-2

B
N/A

16. Share capital

Authorised
400,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50k each

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at January 1, 2020

360,595,261 ordinary shares of the total authorised number of shares of 50k each have been called-up and fully paid.

Issued
360,595,261 Ordinary shares of 50k each
Share premium

17. Retained income and other reserves

Reconciliation of retained income is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

Reconciliation of retained income and other reserves Group -2020

Balance at beginning of year
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

Reconciliation of retained income and other reserves Company -2020

Balance at begining of year
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

9 9 9
447 439 447,439 2
8,838,563 8,589,910 6,107,100
1,000,012 1,000,012 -
10,286,023 10,037,370 6,107,108
200,000 200,000 200,000
194,678 194,678 194,678
180,298 180,298 180,298
14,380 14,380 14,380
194,678 194,678 194,678
39,486,935 39,486,935 33,578,097
2,944,186 6,230,868 8,883,749
(2,974,911) (2,974,911) (2,.974,911)
39,456,210 42,742,892 39,486,935
Retained Other Total
Income Reserves (N.'000)
(N.'000) (N.'000)
39,486,935 - 39,486,935
2,944,186 - 2,944,186
(2,974,911) - (2,974,911)
39,456,210 - 39,456,210
Retained Other Total
Income Reserves (N."000)
(N.'000) (N.'000)
39,486,935 - 39,486,935
6,230,868 - 6,230,868
(2,974,911) - (2,974,911)
42,742,892 - 42,742,892
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
17. Retained income and other reserves (continued)
Reconciliation of retained income and other reserves Company - 2019 Retained Other Total
Income Reserves (N.'000)
(N.'000) (N.’000)
Balance at beginning of year 33,578,097 33,578,097
Profit for the year 8,883,749 8,883,749
Dividends paid (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
39,486,935 39,486,935
18. Borrowings
Held at amortised cost
Bank Overdraft 296,257 296,257 553,142
Short term loan 5,000,000 5,000,000 3,617,000
5,296,257 5,296,257 4,170,142

The bank overdraft facility and short term loan was obtained for working capital requirements

The carrying value of the bank overdraft and loan equals its fair value.
19. Retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The benefit structure is described as follows

Eligibility: All confirmed employees of 11Plc.
Mandatory retirement age: This is 60 for both male and female staff.
Early retirement: Allowable from age 45 with a minimum of 10 years company service.
Final pensionable salary:
transport allowance + vacation allowance + year end bonus + annual furniture allowance) at date of exit
(death, retirement or withdrawal from service).

Years of service:
Company prior to retirement or death or withdrawal.

Employee savings scheme:

This is the Annual Pensionable Salary (i.e. annual basic salary + annual housing allowance + annual

This is payable at retirement and is calculated as 8.33% of annual pensionable salary and multiplied

by the years of service, provided 5 years of qualifying service has been rendered at exit.

Pension Scheme:
for active employees.

Accredited service is defined as the length of time, during which an employee worked full-ime for the

The Defined Benefit pension scheme was converted to Defined Contribution on the 31st January 2017
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000

19. Retirement benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The Company's Defined benefit plan funding requirements are determined using PENCOM regulations. The plan was fully funded following PENCOM's
approval in January 2017 to convert to a Defined Contribution scheme for active employees.The Annuitants are still under the defined benefit scheme.

The valuation of the fund for Annuitants under the defined benefit scheme is as follows:

The valuation was carried out by Alexander Forbes (FRC/2017/NAS/00000016625).

Carrying value

Pension liability (818,307) (818,307) (887,584)
Fund at market value 702,534 702,534 797,791
(115,773) (116,773) (89,793)

Plan Asset Classification Summary

Fixed deposit 210,579 210,579 2,526
Government bond 431,921 431,921 732,557
Corporate bonds 64,046 64,046 65,039
Cash 1,461 1,461 1,636
Receivables 321 321 333
Payables (5,794) (5,794) (4,300)
702,634 702,534 797,791
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000

19. Retirement benefits (continued)

Key assumptions used

The following assumptions were also used by the Actuary in the calculation of the company's Pension Expense, Plan Asset and Defined Benefit
Obligation.

Discount rates used 15.00 % 15.00 % 15.00 %
Inflation - % - % 11.80 %
-% - % 15.00 %

Expected increase in salaries
In order to measure the liability, the projected benefit obligation is discounted to a net present value as at the current balance sheet date.

IFRS through IAS 19 requires that the discount rate be determined on the company's balance sheet date by reference to market yields on high quality
corporate bonds, except where there is no deep market in such bonds, in which case the discount rate should be based on market yields on Government
bonds.

The discount rate should reflect the duration of the liabilities of the benefit program.

The weighted average liability duration for the Plan is 4years. The average weighted duration of a similar Nigerian Government bond as at 31st of
December, 2020 was 4years with a gross redemption yield of 12.00%.

In view of the above, the actuary adopted 15.00% p.a as the discount rate for the current valuation.
Fund management and regulatory expenses are charged directly to the fund on an on-going basis.
Demographic Assumptions:

Mortality: The rates of mortality assumed in the plan are the rates in PA (90) Table (UK annuitant table - published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries, UK). The Mortality experience reflects our assumed future longevity of each pensioner, which is age related.

Age now Average expectation of life
Male Female
55 21 26
60 18 22
65 14 18
70 11 14
75 8 11
80 6 8

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to the scheme in 2020 was N70.91million(2019:N93.4million).

20. Deferred income

Deferred income relates to advance rent on investment properties leased mainly to Mobil Producing Nigeria Unlimited and NNPC promissory notes.

Analysis of deferred income Group 2020 Company Company
(N.'000) 2020 (N.'000) 2019 (N.'000)
QOpening balance 22,223,330 22,223,330 21,649,139
Additions 3,214,408 3,214,408 8,204,462
Amortisation (rental income for the year) (7,660,720) (7,660,720) (7,630,271)
17,777,018 17,777,018 22,223,330
Nen-current 10,609,117 10,609,117 12,805,166
Current 7,167,901 7,167,901 9,418,164
17,777,018 17,777,018 22,223,330
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N.'000 N.'000 N.'000

20. Deferred income (continued)

The Company leases its investment properties to Mobil Producing Nigeria Unlimited under various lease agreements. There were no contingent rents

recognised during the period.
21. Contingent Liability
At the reporting date, there were no lawsuit (2019: N74million) against the Company.

22. Current tax payable

Balance at beginning of the year (2,767,932) (2,767,932) (2,981,363)
Provision for the year (1,412,108) (1,412,108) (3,537,138)
Balance at December 31 583,250 583,250 2,767,932
Movement in current income tax
Opening balance 2,767,932 2,767,932 2,981,363
Payments (3,596,459) (3,596,459) (3,078,072)
Provision for the year 1,412,192 1,412,192 3,637,138
Withholding tax credit utilised (415) (415) (672,497)
Balance at December 31 583,250 583,250 2,767,932
23. Trade and other payables
Trade payables 5,671,769 5,404,570 6,794,465
VAT payable 494,083 451,370 115,679
Other payables 460,820 204,793 265,390
Due to related companies 10,260,164 10,080,458 5,126,965
Accrued expenses 47,521 47,521 40,044
Unclaimed dividend & payments 1,318,314 1,318,314 1,553,426
Non-product trade payables 3,450,541 3,450,541 1,572,620
Bridging allowance 3,084,191 3,084,191 3,404,161
Witholding tax 100,962 3,593 -
Consumption tax 30,866 -
24,919,231 24,025,351 18,872,750
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
. Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are settled within an average of 34 days of receipt of invoice
. Other payables are non-interest bearing and are mainly made up of retention on contracts, WHT and employee payables .
. Terms and conditions of related parties are disclosed in note 34.
24. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below. There was no contract liability in 2020.
Loans and Receivables - Group 2020
Financial Total
liabilities at (N.'000)
amortised cost
Trade and other payables (Excl. taxes and unclaimed dividend and payment) 22,969,123 22,969,123
Bank overdraft 296,257 296,257
Short Term Borrowings 5,000,000 5,000,000
28,265,380 28,265,380
Loans and payables - Company 2020
Financial Total
liabilities at (N.'000)
amortised cost
Trade and other payables (Excl. taxes and unclaimed dividend and payment) 22,252,074 22,252,074
Bank overdraft 297,257 297,257
Short term borrowings 5,000,000 5,000,000
27,549,331 27,549,331
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2020 2020 2019

N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
24. Financial liabilities by category (continued)
Loans and payables - Company 2019

Financial Total
liabilities at
amortised cost
Trade and other payables (Excl. taxes and unclaimed dividend and payment) 17,203,645 17,203,645
Bank overdraft 553,142 553,142
Short term borrowings 3,617,000 3,617,000
21,373,787 21,373,787

25. Revenue
Third party sales 149,155,646 147 567,161 186,144,148
Intercompany sales 16,340,781 16,340,781 5,632,181

165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or

services included in revenue are as follows:
Sale of goods 165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329

Disaggregated revenue information

Fuels 124,667,654 124,667,654 154,962,941
Lubes 37,354,452 37,354,452 35,333,041
Liquefied petroleum gas(LPG) 1,885,836 1,885,836 1,380,347
Revenue from 11 Hospitality 1,588,485 - -

165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329

Geographical markets
Nigeria 165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329

26. Other income

Profit on sale on disposal of Right-of-use-Asset 270,302 270,302 -
Rental income 7,912,115 7,912,115 7,890,508
Other operating income 825,651 825,651 72,113
Backcourt income 68,173 68,173 79,841

9,076,241 9,076,241 8,042,462

Rental income represents rent received from investment properties of N7,660million (2019: N7,630million) and the balance represents rent from service
stations.

Other operating income includes; services charges on demurrage, sale of scrap.
27. Cost of sales

Sale of goods
Purchases 152,094,024 151,934,168 174,617,549

Manufacturing Expenses 582,135 582,135 418,292
152,676,159 152,516,303 175,035,841
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2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000

28. Operating expense
Total expenses
Administrative expenses 9,480,549 4,765,238 4,520,544
Selling and distribution expenses 6,467,220 6,467,220 7,007,774
Loss on asset disposals - - 35,552

15,947,769 11,232,458 11,563,870
The following items are included within operating expenses:
Administrative expense (excl. depreciation) 3,973,803 1,990,813 1,834,827
Selling and distribution expenses (excl. depreciation) 6,851,457 5,607,903 6,172,257
Depreciation and amortisation 5,122,509 3,633,742 3,621,234
Loss on asset disposals - - 35,552

15,947,769 11,232,458 11,663,870
Depreciation on manufacturing expense is charged to cost of sales and excluded from depreciation and amortisation in operating expense.
Included in operating expenses are the following expenses by nature
Expenses by nature
Employee related expenses 1,791,115 1,402,683 1,768,773
Volume related expense 2,987,612 2,987,612 4,012,258
Depreciation and amortisation 5,122,509 3,633,742 3,621,234
Maintenance & repairs 1,377,245 838,496 639,506
Auditors remuneration 27,824 21,000 21,000
Loss on asset disposals - - 35,652
Short-term rent 32,356 32,356 34,844
Others 4,200,259 1,917,776 1,076,798
Advert and promotion 377,292 365,236 412,933
Interest expense employee 11,044 11,044 19,687
Impairment on trade receivables 22,513 22,513 21,285

15,949,769 11,232,458 11,563,870
Auditors remuneration includes 27.8M (including value added tax) to Grant Thornton for 2020 Audit services and 21M relates to prior year fees.
Others mainly consists of contract labour, financial, legal, research,hotel supplies and royalty paid to ExxonMobil.
29. Finance costs
Interest expense 475,858 475,858 310,103

Finance costs were incurred on overdraft facility obtained for working capital requirements, deposit made by dealers and on establishment of letter of
credit.

30. Finance Income

Interest income on short term bank deposit 198,964 198,964 281,181
Interest income on loan to employees 30,414 30,414 17,719
229,378 229,378 298,900
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Group Company
2020 2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000 N.'000

31. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Current
Company income tax 1,197,787 1,197,787 3,251,352
Prior year overprovision - - 898
Education tax (non - deductibility of Depreciation - 2%) 214,321 214,321 284,888

1,412,108 1,412,108 3,537,138
Deferred
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,345,966 1,345,066 668,004
Tax effect on IFRS 9 - - 18,986

1,345,966 1,345,966 686,990

2,758,074 2,758,074 4,224,128
Profit before tax 5,702,260 8,988,942 13,107,877
Reconciliation of tax expense using accounting profit
Income tax using statutory rate 30% 2,696,683 2,696,683 3,932,363
Education tax 214,326 214,326 285,331
Investment allowance (Tax incentive) (186,265) (186,265) (38,434)
Others 33,330 33,330 43,970
Prior year adjustment - - 898

2,758,074 2,758,074 4,224,128

32. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is determined by dividing profit or loss atfributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outsandind during the year. The weighted average number of shares used in the Eamings per share calculation is 360,595,261 (2019:
360,595,261).

A final dividend has been recommended by the Board and is subject to shareholders approval at the annual general meeting. It has therefore not been
recognised as a liablility in the reporting period.

Basic Earnings Per Share
from continuing operations (kobo per share) 816 1,728 2,464

The computation of basic eamings per share was based on earnings and a weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Dividends paid
Dividend per share: final (kobo) 850 850 825

33. Dividends paid

Dividends (2,974,911) (2,974,911) (2,974,911)
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Group Company

2020 2020 2019

N. '000 N.'000 N.'000
34. Related parties
Relationships
Nipco Plc Parent Company
Agri Chemicals Limited Common Shareholders
11Hospitality Subsidiary
Related party balances
Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding
related parties
Nipco Plc (2,260,185) (2,065,913) 7,236,876
11 Hospitality - 1,067,770 -
Agric Chemicals Limited (7,994,546) (7,994,546) (5,126,965)
Dividend paid
Nipco Plc 2,089,799 2,089,799 1,999,240
Related party transactions
Income from related parties
Nipco Plc 16,340,781 16,340,781 5,532,181
Administration fees paid to (received from) related parties
Nipco Plc 587,614 587,614 281,134
Purchases from related party
Nipco Plc 15,505,378 15,505,378 15,655,418
Agri Chemical Limited 36,298,870 36,298,870 22,428,856

11PIc purchased lubricants from ExxonMobil Corporation through Agri Chemicals Limited.

Other related party disclosures

The sales to and purchases from related parties were made on terms equivalent to those that would prevail in an arm’s length transactions. Outstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. No guarantees were provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the year ended December 31, 2020, 11Plc has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
related parties (2019: Nil). This assessment is taken each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the

related party operate.

35. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

No commitment on investment properties in 2020.

36. Non-current assets held for sale

The asset held for sale relates to a service station that the Lagos state goverment intend to use for a project of overidding public interest.

The asset was completely taken over by Lagos State Government in 2020.
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Note 37 Fair Value Measurement and disclosures

The Group considers the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities not significantly different from its carrying values disclosed in
the statement of financial position

a) Investment Properties

Location of Investment properties Valuation technique

1, Lekki Epe Express Way, Victoria Island, Lagos The market approach was used in arriving at the fair value of the
property using evidences of similar and comparable (nature,
location and condition) properties of recent sales transaction in the
property market.

1, Ligali Ayorinde Street, Victoria Island, Lagos The market approach was used in arriving at the fair value of the
property using evidences of similar and comparable (nature,
location and condition) properties of recent sales transaction in the
property market.

3 Bayo Kuku Road, lkoyi, Lagos The market approach was used in arriving at the fair value of the
property using evidences of similar and comparable (nature,
location and condition) properties of recent sales transaction in the
property market.

10A & B Temple Road, lkoyi, Lagos The market approach was used in arriving at the fair value of the
property using evidences of similar and comparable (nature,
location and condition) properties of recent sales transaction in the
property market.

10 Temple Road, lkoyi, Lagos The market approach was used in arriving at the fair value of the
property using evidences of similar and comparable (nature,
location and condition) properties of recent sales transaction in the
property market.

b) Employee loans

Loans to Employees The discounted cash flow method was used in arriving at the fair
value of the loans the Company provides to employees. This fair
value is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risks and
remaining maturity.

The fair values of investment properties and employee loans are categorized as Level 3.
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2020 2019
N. '000 N.'000
38. Directors & Key management personnel emoluments
Emoluments of directors
Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors -
Remuneration paid to Executive Directors 185,157 173,692
Other emoluments to NED 2,193 1,985
Total 187,350 175,676
The Executive Directors' remuneration shown above
(excluding pensions and pension contributions) include:
Chairman 0 0
The role of the chairman has been seperated from the role of managing director
Highest paid Director 88,879 81,529
Directors received emoluments in the following ranges :
Number
N251,001 - N1,000,000
Above N1,000,000 2 2
The chairman does not receive emolument
Emoluments of key management personnel
Short term benefits (Salaries wages & other benefits) 295,490 273,746
Post employment benefits -
Total 295,490 273,746
Staff numbers
(a) The average monthly number of full time persons employed by the Company during
the year (excluding the 3 executive directors) was as follows : Number
Management staff 15 15
Senior staff 55 58
Total 70 73
(b) Employees of the Company, other than Directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly
discharged in Nigeria, received remuneration (excluding pension contributions) in
the following ranges :
Under N2,000,000 1 1
N2,000,001 - N 6,000,000 3 7
N6,000,001 - N 8,000,000 3 16
N8,000,001 - N 10,000,000 23 12
N10,000,001 - N 20,000,000 26 24
N20,000,001 & above 14 13
70 73

Total
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39 Segmental Information

Group
As at December 31 2020, the Group had three reportable business segments:
(i) Petroleum Products Marketing (ii) Property Businessiii)Hospitality

The Group assets are located within Nigeria and there were no export sales made as at December 31, 2020. {2019: Nil)

Segment revenue reported below represents revenue generated from external customers. There were also no intersegment sales as at December 31,2020 (2019. nil). The
accounting policy of the reportable segments below are the same as the Group accounting policies disclosed in the financial statements.

Company
Petro::ﬂn:e:n::ucts Property Business Hospitality Total
(N'000) (N'000) {N'000) (N"000)
A The segment results for the period ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:
Revenue 163,907,942 - 1,588,485 165,496,427
Cost of sales (152,516,303) - (159,856) (152,676,159)
Operating expense (8,645,206) (2,587,251) (4,715,311) (15,947,769)
Other income 1,415,520 7,660,720 9,076,241
Finance income 229,378 - 229,378
Finance costs (475,858) - {475,858)
Profit before tax 3,915,474 5,073,469 (3,286,682) 5,702,260
Taxation credit/charge {1,083,090) (1,674,985) (2,758,074)
Profit for the period 2,832,384 3,398,484 (3,286,682) 2,944,186
The segment results for the period ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:
Revenue 191,676,329 - 191,676,329
Cost of sales (175,035,841) - (175,035,841)
Operating expense (8,977,792) (2,586,078) {11,563,870)
Other income 412,191 7,630,271 8,042,462
Finance income 298,900 - 298,800
Finance costs (310,103) - (310,103)
Profit before taxation 8,063,684 5,044,193 13,107,877
Taxation (2,558,462) (1,665,666) (4,224,128)
Profit for the period 5,505,221 3,378,521 8,883,749
B Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2020:
Intangible assets 21,164 - 21,164
Segmented total assets (excl. cash and cash equivalents & deferred tax) 43,861,168 18,086,279 20,526,317 82,473,764
Segmented total liabilities (excl.bank overdraft, borrowings & deferred tax) (21,865,844) (19,452,003) (1,961,652) (43,279,499)
Deferred tax - (4,829,484) {4,829,484)
Cash and cash eguivalents 10,037,371 - 248,653 10,286,024
Segmented nel assets 32,032,695 (6,195,207) 18,813,318 44,650,805
Capital expenditure 12,825,454 - 92,456 12,917,910
Depreciation charge for the year (1,060,000} (2,573,742) (1,488,767) (5,122,509)
Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2019:
Intangible assets 44,696 - 44,696
Segmented total assets (excl. cash and cash equivalents & deferred tax) 63,234,984 21,304,050 84,539,034
Segmented total liabilities (19,975,016) (23,888,997) (43,864,013)
Deferred tax (3,483,517) (3,483,517)
Cash and cash equivalents 6,107,109 - 6,107,109
Segmented net assets 49,367,077 (6,068,464) 43,298,613
Capital expenditure 18,273,079 - 18,273,079
Depreciation charge for the year (975,499) (2,576,198) (3,551,697)

Segment assets consist primarily of Investment properties, property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets, Inventory, long term receivables, debtors
and other receivables. Deferred taxation and cash and short term deposits are not aliocated to segments as they are managed on a total Group basis.

Segment liabilities comprise current taxation, unamortized rental income, payables and other liabilities and provision for liabilities & charges. Unallocated
liability is deferred taxation.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets.
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Property, plant and equipment

Company
Plant and Fixtures and Motor Asset under
December 2020 Land Buildings Equipment Fittings Vehicles Construction Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
At beginning of the year 1,649,346 7,137,486 9,056,634 332,129 463,080 16,855,632 35,494,507
Additions 245,607 230,813 640,550 115,984 11,057,349 12,290,304
Transfer between asset classes 103,645 (103,645) -
Transfers from asset under Construction 54,493 5,706,703 (5,622,760)
Disposals (33,333) - (33,333)
INV IN SUB (22,100,000) (22,100,000)
At the end of the period 1,895,153 7,422,793 15,474,198 228,484 579,064 190,221 25,789,913
Depreciation
At beginning of the year - (2,546,198) (3,919.977) (311,994) (338,728) - (7,116,897
Charge for year - (295,256} (452,373) (25,407) (47,069) - (820,105)
Transfer between asset classes - {138,436) (138,436)
Disposals - 28,495 - 28,495
At the end of the period - (2,841,454) (4,482,290) (337,400) (385,797) - (8,046,943)
Net book value
December 31, 2020 1,895,153 4,581,338 10,991,909 (108,916) 193,267 190,221 17,742,970
Plant and Fixtures and Motor Asset under
December 2019 Land Buildings Equipment Fittings Vehicles Construction Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
At beginning of the year 718,713 6,741,036 7,808,047 333,023 429864 1,298,558 17,329,241
Additions 930,833 431,793 507,018 788 46,801 16,355,846 18,273,079
Transfer from assel under construction - 23,242 774,100 - 1,430 (798,772) -
Held for sale
Disposals - (58,585) (32,531) (1,682) (15,015) - (107,813)
Atend of the year 1,649,546 7,137,486 9,056,634 332,129 463,080 16,855,632 35,494,507
Depreciation
At beginning of the year . (2,294,194) (3,533,238) (272,464) (306,179) - (6,406,075)
Charge for year - (280,809) (411,344) (41,212) (47,564) - (780,929)
Disposals - 28,805 24,605 1,682 15,015 - 70,107
Atend of the year - (2,546,198) (3,919,977} (311,994) (338,728) - (7,116,897)
Net book value
December 31, 2019 1,649,546 4,591,288 5,136,658 20,135 124,352 16,855,632 28,377,610
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11Plc
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

For the Period Ended December 31, 2020 N'000
Intangible assets
Company
December 2020 Software Costs Fﬂng;t: Permit Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
At beginning of the year 229,582 15,045 244,627
At the end of the period 229,582 0 15,045 244,627
Amortization
At beginning of the year (195,606) (4,325) (199,931)
Amortization for the period charged to expense (22,780) - (752) (23,533)
At the end of the period (218,386) - (5,078) (223,463)
Net Book Value
December 31, 2020 11,195 - 9,967 21,164
December 2019 Software Costs Tranchise Permit Total
Costs
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
At beginning of the year 229,582 77,006 15,045 321,633
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At end of the year 229,582 77,006 15,045 321,633
Amortization
At beginning of the year (172,826) (76,918) (3,573) (253,317)
Amortization for the period charged to expense (22,780) (88) (752) (23,620)
Disposals -
At end of the year (195,606) (77,006) (4,325) (276,937)
Net Book Value
December 31, 2019 33,976 0 10,720 44,696

Intangible assets are made up of the cost of upgrading the Company's computer systems, permits and the franchise cost paid,
which gives Company owned service stations the right to have named brand in the back-court shops. The assets are amortised
using straight line method with a useful life of fifteen, ten and twenty years for the software, franchise and permit cost respectively.
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Investment property movement analysis

Company
Land Plant Fixtures
December 2020 and and and Asset under
Buildings Equipment Fittings Construction Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
At beginning of the year 12,646,195 20,450,384 = 293,204 33,389,782
Asset class realignment - - - - -
Disposals - - - = -
At end of the year 12,646,195 20,450,384 293,204 33,389,782
Depreciation
At beginning of the year (2,099,958) (10,493,193) - 3 {12,593,151)
Charge for year (298,562) (2.275,179) - (2,573,742)
Disposals - - - -
At end of the year (2,398,520) (12,768,372) - - {15,166,893)
Net book value
December 31,2020 10,247,674 7,682,012 - 293,204 18,222,889
Land Plant Fixtures
December 2019 and and and Asset under
Buildings Equipment Fittings Construction Total
N'000 N"000 N'000 N'000 N'"000
Cost
At beginning of the year 12,646,195 20,450,384 - 293,204 33,389,782
Additions - - - - -
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
At end of the year 12,646,195 20,450,384 - 293,204 33,389,782
Depreciation
At beginning of the year (1,799,268) (8,217,685) . . (10,016,953)
Charge for the year (300,690) (2,275,508) - - (2,576,198)
Disposals - - - - -
At end of the year (2,099,958) (10,493,193) - - (12,593,151)
Net book value
December 31, 2019 10,546,237 9,957,191 - 293,204 20,796,631
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Statement of Value Added

Group Company 2019
2020 2020
N. '000 % N. '000 % N. '000 %
- Inland sales 165,496,427 163,907,942 191,676,329
- Export sales - .
Sales to outsiders 163,907,942 191,676,329
- Local purchases 126,600,071 122,670,753 158,686,883
- Purchases from imports 36,317,537 36,298,870 22,428,856
Purchases of goods and other services 162,917,609 158,969,623 181,115,739
Value added by trading operations 2,578,816 21.825 4,938,318 35 10,560,590 57
Other income 9,346,543 78 9,346,543 65 8,042,462 43
11,925,360 14,284,862 18,603,052
Other expense (35,552) -
11,925,359.87 14,284,862 100 18,567,500 100
Applied as follows :
To pay staff and labour related expenses 1,791,115 15 1,402,683 10 1,768,773 10
To pay dividends to shareholders 2,974,911 25 2,974,911 21 2,974,911 16
To pay interests and similar charges 475,858 4 475,858 3 310,103 2
To pay Government taxes and licences 2,758,074 23 2,758,074 19 4,224,128 22
To provide for maintenance of assets 3,956,129 33 3,417,380 24 3,380,747 18
Profit after tax transferred to reserve (net of dividend) (30,725), (0) 3,255,957 23 590,883 3
11,925,360 100 14,284,862 100 18,567,500 100
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Company

Five-Year Financial Summary

| 2020| | 2019] | 2018| 2017| | 2016
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Equity
Share capital 180,298 180,298 180,298 180,298 180,298
Share premium 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380 14,380
Reserves 42,742,892 33,578,097 27,164,151 21,262,818
42,937,571 43,804,345 33,772,775 27,358,829 21,457,796
Assets and liabilities :
Property, plant & equipment 17,742,970 28,377,610 10,923,166 10,923,166 7,936,980
Investment property 18,222,889 20,796,632 23,372,829 23,372,830 29,374,398
Right-of-use-assets 1,846,256 1,527,470
Intangible assets 21,164 44,696 68,316 68,316 82,683
Deferred tax assets - - - 0 -
Prepayments 37,234 86,558 2,033,676 2,033,676 1,978,780
Working capital (2,938,226) (1,594,425) 14,935,050 14,855,872 3,506,932
34,932,287 49,238,541 51,333,037 51,253,859 42,879,773
Net deferred credits (15,438,517) (16,288,683) (17,560,262) (17,560,262) (21,422,277)
Net tangible assets 19,493,769 41,931,288 33,772,775 33,693,597 21,457,496
Turnover 163,907,942 191,676,329 164,609,535 164,609,535 94,107,683
Profit before taxation 8,988,942 13,107,877 13,695,459 13,695,459 12,019,892
Taxation (2,758,074) (4,224,128) (4,366,524) (4,366,524) (3,865,599)
Profit after taxation 6,230,868 8,883,749 9,328,935 9,328,935 8,154,293
Actuarial gains/(losses) - - - - 536,088.50
Reserves beginning of the year 39,486,935 33,578,097 27,164,151 21,262,818 15,168,723
Bonus issue - - - - =
Dividends (2,974,911) (2,974,911) (2,884,762) (2,884,762) (2,596,286)
Adoption of IFRS adjustments - - (30,227) - -
Reserves end of year 42,742,891 39,486,935 33,578,097 27,164,151 21,262,818
Earnings per 50k share 1728K 246K 2587K 2261K 2261K
Dividends per 50k share 825K 825k 800K 800K
Net assets per 50k share 5406K 10489K 9366K 9344K 5951K

Note:

1) Earnings and dividend per share are calculated on the basis of the fully paid ordinary shares of 360,595,261 for

2016- 2020 financial year .

Net assets per share are based on the net assets of the Company and number of ordinary shares of 50k in issue at the

end of each financial year

2) Allfigures disclosed are based on IFRS.
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